VIRGINIA BOARD
FOR
WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS
AND ONSITE SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS

Tentative AGENDA THURSDAY, JULY 8, 2021
9:30 A.M. BOARD ROOM 4-- SECOND FLOOR

DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL
REGULATION PERIMETER CENTER -- 9960 MAYLAND DRIVE
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23233

L CALL TO ORDER

II. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES

III.- APPROVAL OF AGENDA
a. Board Agenda, July 8, 2021

Iv. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a.. Board Meeting Minutes, April 29, 2021

V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - Five-minute public comment, per person, on those
items not included on the agenda with the exception of any open disciplinary files.

VL CASE FILES**

a. File Number 2021-00646, Avis Kaye Purrington
IFF by Eldridge—Licensing

b. File Number 2021-00698, Tywan Eugene Turner, Sr.
IFF by Eldridge—Licensing

c. File Number 2021-00783, Matthew Gene Cox
IFF by Eldridge—Licensing

d. File Number 2021-01070, Sabrina Latasha Pertilla
IFF by Eldridge—Licensing

VII. REGULATORY ACTIONS
a. Regulatory Action Update

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS
a. WWO 2021 CPE Audit Report
b. Examination Updates
i. Examination Statistics Report
c. Discussion of Legislative Proposal to Add OSSP Representation to the Board
d. DPOR Updates as it Relates to COVID-19 Response
e. Board Financial Statements
f. Update on Outreach Opportunities
g. Other Business

IX. FUTURE MEETING DATES
a. October 28, 2021

X. COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORMS AND TRAVEL VOUCHERS

XI. ADJOURN



Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpretative services
should contact the Department at (804) 367-0362 at least ten days prior to the meeting so that suitable

arrangements can be made for an appropriate accommodation. The Department fully complies with the
Americans with Disabilities Act.

** Agenda materials made available to the public do not include disciplinary case files or application files pursuant
to §54.1-108 of the Code of Virginia.



PERIMETER CENTER CONFERENCE CENTER
EMERGENCY EVACUATION OF BOARD AND TRAINING ROoOMS
(Script to be read at the beginning of each meeting.)

PLEASE LISTEN TO THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS ABOUT EXITING THE PREMISES IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY.

In the event of a fire or other emergency requiring the evacuation of the building, alarms will sound.
When the alarms sound, leave the room immediately. Follow any instructions given by Security staff

Board Room 1
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Board Room 2
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. (Point) Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

You may also exit the room using the side door, turn Right out the door and make an immediate Left. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon-exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Board Rooms 3 and 4
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Training Room 1
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn LEFT. Follow the corridor
to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Training Room 2
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the doors, turn LEFT. Follow the corridor
to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.



VIRGINIA BOARD FOR
WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS AND ONSITE
SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS

MINUTES OF MEETING

The Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System
Professionals (Board) met virtually via Google Meet on April 29, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. Board staff
was present at the Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation (DPOR), 9960
Mayland Drive, Richmond, Virginia 23233. The meeting was held virtually due to the current
public health emergency related to COVID-19 declared by the Governor, which made it
impracticable or unsafe for the Board to assemble in a single location. The purpose of meeting
was to discuss or transact business statutorily required or necessary to continue operations of the
Board.

The following members of the Board were present:

James N. Brockwell
Rosa-Lee Cooke
Erica Duncan
W. Jordan Evans
John Ewing
Thomas Wayne Fore, Vice-Chair
Pamela M. Pruett, Chair
Dwayne Roadcap
D. Wayne Staples

DPOR staff present for all or part of the meeting included:

Mary Broz-Vaughan, Director
Trisha L. Lindsey, Executive Director
Johnathan Darden, Director of Investigations
Shannon Webster, Director of Examinations
Joseph C. Haughwout, Jr., Board and Regulatory Administrator
Lisa Robinson, Licensing Operations Administrator
Tanya M. Pettus, Administrative Assistant

Joshua Laws from the Office of the Attorney General was present at the meeting.

Ms. Pruett, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. Call to Order

Ms. Lindsey took roll of Board members and advised those in Roll Call
attendance at the meeting of staff present.

Mr. Fore moved to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Staples Approval of
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by: Agenda
Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap,

and Staples.
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Ms. Lindsey advised those in attendance of procedures in place for
conducting the meeting virtually.

Mr. Staples moved to approve the minutes of the January 14, 2021,
Board meeting as presented. Mr. Evans seconded the motion which
was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans,
Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, and Staples.

Mr. Ewing moved to approve the minutes of the March 30, 2021,
Onsite Sewage System Professionals (OSSP) Committee meeting as
presented. Mr. Brockwell seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans,
Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, and Staples.

One member of the public, Bob Dietrich, was present but did not
wish toaddress the Board.

Ms. Pruett recused herself from the meeting for discussion and
deliberation on File Number 2020-02557.

Mr. Fore, Vice-Chair, assumed Chair of the Board.

In the matter of File Number 2020-02557, Richard Tyrone
Richardson, the Board members reviewed the Consent Order. Mr.
Richardson admits to a violation of 18VAC 160-40-470.14 as
outlined in Count 1, and consents to the imposition of a monetary
penalty of $400.00, and (ii) Board costs of $150.00. In addition, Mr.
Richardson agrees to complete at least three (3) hours of education
pertaining to laws and regulations within six (6) months of the
effective date of the Order. It is acknowledged that satisfactory
completion of the above referenced continuing education hours will
not count towards any continuing education requirements, if
applicable, for renewal or reinstatement of license. Ms. Cooke
moved to approve the Consent Order as presented. Mr. Staples
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Roadcap, and
Staples.

Ms. Pruett returned to the meeting and resumed Chair of the Board.
Mr. Haughwout provided an update on the current status of the
regulatory review processes for the Board’s regulatory packages:

Notice of a periodic review of the Waterworks and Wastewater

Works Operators Licensing Regulations was published in the
Virginia Register on October 26, 2020. A public comment period

Announcements

Approval of
Minutes

Public Comment
Period

Recusal of Board
Member

File Number 2020-
02557, Richard
Tyrone Richardson

Return of Board
Member

Regulatory Action
Update
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was held from October 26, 2020 to November 16, 2020, during
which one public comment was received. The Board voted to retain
the regulations as written at its January 14, 2021, meeting.

Notice of a periodic review of .the Onsite Sewage System
Professionals Licensing Regulations was published in the Virginia
Register on October 26, 2020. A public comment period was held
from October 26, 2020 to November 16, 2020, during which one
public comment was received. - The Board voted to retain the
regulations as written at its January 14, 2021, meeting.

A Notice of Intended Regulatory Action (NOIRA) was filed on
February 2, 2021, in-order to amend Waterworks and Wastewater
Works Operators Licensing Regulations to adjust current licensing
fees in order to remain in compliance with the Callahan Act. The
NOIRA is currently undergoing executive branch review, after which
a 30-day public comment period will be held.

A NOIRA was filed on February 2, 2021, in order to amend Onsite
Sewage System Professionals Licensing Regulations to adjust
current licensing fees in order to remain in compliance with the
Callahan Act. The NOIRA is currently undergoing executive branch
review, after which a 30-day public comment period will be held.

Ms. Lindsey provided the Board with waterworks and wastewater Examination
works examination statistics from January 1, 2017 through March Updates

31, 2021, as well as an overview of pass rates for waterworks and

wastewater works exams from 2010 through March 31, 2021.

Ms. Lindsey provided the Board with onsite examination statistics
from January 1, 2017 to March 31, 2021, and July 1, 2018 to March
31,2021.

Ms. Lindsey briefly shared an email from Bob Dietrich, Water
Operations Manager at the Bedford Regional Water Authority. Mr.
Dietrich is concerned that his employees are having trouble passing
the waterworks exam, and he has been told that there are
ambiguous questions that may have more than one correct answer.
Discussion was held on ways in which operators can train and learn
the material through practice tests and repetition.

Ms. Cooke shared her concern that operators who are attempting to
re-take a failed exam are unable to schedule a new exam time
online, and must call PSI for scheduling. Ms. Cooke stated there
have been issues with reaching customer service over the phone.
Ms. Webster stated she would follow-up with ABC regarding Ms.
Cooke’s concerns.
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Ms. Webster advised the Board that she is working on finalizing
Mountain Empire Community College’s approval to proctor the
ABC exam for waterworks and wastewater works applicants.

Discussion was held on PSI exam facilities in Johnson City, TN and
Salisbury, MD, both of which accept exam candidates from
neighboring areas in Virginia.

Ms. Lindsey and Mr. Ewing updated the Board on topics discussed
at the March 30, 2021, OSSP Committee meeting. The Board
formed the Committee to review current staff procedures for
processing applications ~ for licensure and ensuring licensee
compliance with the Board’s regulations.

Discussion was held regarding outreach and, particularly,
opportunities to work with regional and local health department
staff as well as staff at VDH headquarters.

Discussion was held on adding seats to the Board in order to offer
more representation of the OSSP industry, as it is currently difficult
for Board members in OSSP seats to consider or vote on
disciplinary matters because they are often required to recuse
themselves based on their participation in the technical review and
informal fact finding stages of the complaint or licensing review
process. Because the OSSP licensure program began in 2008,
there are very few former Board members who could participate in
IFFs or technical review as is sometimes the case with other
Boards. Ms. Lindsey and Ms. Broz-Vaughan advised that adding
OSSP seats to the Board would require a legislative change and
that, in order to move forward for consideration by the
administration, the matter would require a Board vote.

The Board recessed from 10:35 a.m. to 10:45 a.m.

Discussion of OSSP representation on the Board continued. After
lengthy discussion, Mr. Fore moved to table the discussion for a
future meeting. Mr. Ewing seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans,
Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, and Staples. Ms. Lindsey advised
the Board that should it wish to pursue a legislative amendment to
add OSSP seats to the Board, the matter must be addressed at the
July Board meeting in order to meet legislative submission
deadlines.

Given the topics addressed during the OSSP Committee meeting,
Ms. Lindsey asked the Board to consider forming a committee for
the general review of the Onsite Sewage System Professionals

Updates from OSSP
Committee

Recess

Updates from OSSP
Committee
Continued
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Licensing Regulations. Mr. Fore moved to form a committee for
the general review of the regulations, and suggested that Mr.
Brockwell, Mr. Evans, Mr. Ewing, and Ms. Pruitt serve on the
committee. Mr. Fore also volunteered to serve on the committee.
In addition, staff will work in conjunction with the Board Chair to
identify other possible members to serve on the committee. Mr.
Staples seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap,

and Staples.

Mr. Darden provided the Board with an overview of DPOR’s Discussion on
authority to issue cease and desist notices for unlicensed activity, Statutory Authority
and the process for issuing notices. Mr. Darden explained the and DPOR Policy
differences between the higher standard of evidence needed for Regarding the
criminal cases involving unlicensed activity, compared to the Issuing of Cease and
standard required for regulatory cases involving violations of Desist Orders

licensing regulations; and explained the considerations involved in
making a decision as to whether to issue a cease and desist notice.

Ms. Pruett and Mr. Fore thanked Mr. Darden for his time and
information.

Ms. Broz Vaughan thanked Mr. Darden for his continued work on
this legally complicated matter and advised that DPOR would
continue to work with other agencies on ways to prevent unlicensed

activity.
Ms. Lindsey asked the Board to consider a guidance document Discussion of CPE
allowing licensees to receive continuing professional education Credit for Board

(CPE) credit for attending a Board meeting. Board staff included Meeting Attendance
several recommendations, including that CPE credit can be given
for a maximum of seven (7) contact hours for attending a meeting,
and only for one meeting per license cycle. After discussion, Mr.
Fore moved to adopt a guidance document incorporating staff
recommendations for allowing licensees to receive CPE credit for
attending a Board meeting. After further discussion, Mr. Staples
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap,
and Staples. Ms. Lindsey advised that the guidance document will
be published for a 30-day public comment period, after which it
will become effective.

Ms. Lindsey reminded the Board that temporary waivers of certain ~ DPOR Updates as it
regulations pursuant to Executive Order 51 in response to COVID-  Relates to COVID-
19 remain in place. Ms. Lindsey advised that the temporary 19 Response
waivers will be extended until the 30th day after the date by which
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the state of emergency is lifted. Board staff is working to get notice
to licensees that the 30 day extension will have a hard deadline for
those who have not renewed their license during the state of
emergency.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Board that the agency remains closed to the
public and staff scheduling adjustments remain in place, including
telework for those employees who are eligible.

Ms. Lindsey provided the Board with the most recent financial
statements for review.

Ms. Lindsey updated the Board on recent and upcoming outreach
opportunities. Ms. Lindsey advised that the Virginia Tech Short
School will be held virtually this year.

Ms. Pruett shared with the Board that she had received an inquiry
regarding CPE requirements from a National Guardsman who was
preparing for deployment. Ms. Lindsey advised that licensing
provisions for active members of the military could be found in the
Code of Virginia and she would provide specific information to Ms.
Pruett after the meeting.

Discussion was held on outreach and education opportunities
involving VDH staff, including VDH staff that hold DPOR licenses,
as well as Department of Environmental Quality staff, and other state
and local agencies. The Board suggested inviting a VDH
representative to present to the Board regarding permitting
requirements and processes, including any practices for ensuring
compliance with DPOR-related regulations as well as the
coordination between local health departments and VDH
headquarters. During the discussion, Mr. Roadcap referenced a
VDH policy that has been in place since 2010 regarding VDH
verifying licensure of DPOR regulants for work submitted to VDH.

Ms. Lindsey presented the Board with tentative Board meeting dates
for 2022 for consideration. Mr. Fore moved to accept the following
meeting dates:

January 27, 2022

April 21, 2022

July 14, 2022

October 27, 2022

Mr. Staples seconded the motion which was unanimously approved
by: Brockwell, Cooke, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett,
Roadcap, and Staples.

Board Financial
Statements

Update on Qutreach
Opportunities

Consider 2022
Meeting Dates
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Ms. Lindsey asked the Board for guidance on 18VAC160-40-170.  Other Business
F. which currently states, “No individual shall act as an alternative
onsite sewage system operator of an alternative onsite sewage
system that exceeds 10,000 gallons per day design flow without
possessing a Class 4 or higher wastewater works operator license in
addition to an alternative onsite sewage system operator license.”
The Board’s previous consensus was that one individual must hold
both an alternative onsite sewage system operator license and a
Class 4 or higher wastewater works operator license in order to
operate an alternative onsite sewage system that exceeds 10,000
gallons per day, and two individuals would not meet the licensing
requirement by partnering with each other. However, there are a
limited number of individuals who hold both licenses, making it
difficult for either alternative onsite sewage system operators or
Class 4 or higher wastewater works operators to comply with this
regulation. After discussion, Mr. Roadcap moved that staff draft a
guidance document stipulating that a licensed alternative onsite
sewage system operator and a licensed Class 4 or higher wastewater
works operator may work together to operate, and be equally
responsible for, an alternative onsite sewage system that exceeds
10,000 gallons per day design flow. The Board will consider the
guidance document at its next meeting. Mr. Staples seconded the
motion which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Cooke,
Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, and Staples.

Ms. Lindsey reminded the Board that the next scheduled meeting Future Meeting
date is July 8, 2021, and advised that the meeting will be tentatively Dates
planned as in-person.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Board that Board member Caleb Taylor did Other Business
attempt to join the meeting but had technical difficulties. Continued

Mr. Staples reiterated that VA Tech Short School will be held
virtually this year, with a combination of pre-recorded and live
sessions.

Mr. Roadcap shared that VDH waterworks regulations have been
approved by the Governor and will be published to the Virginia
Register in the coming weeks. The regulations should become
effective in June.

Ms. Pruitt reminded the Board members to complete and return Complete Conflict
their electronic conflict of interest forms. of Interest Forms

Ms. Webster advised the Board that she contacted ABC regarding Examination
issues with online exam scheduling for those re-taking the exam Scheduling Update
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discussed earlier in the meeting. ABC stated that this was a system-
wide issue that they are working to correct.

Ms. Webster also advised that the DPOR website has been updated
to reflect Johnson City, TN and Salisbury, MD as PSI testing sites
available for exam candidates.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:21 Adjourn
p.m.

Pamela M. Pruett, Chair

Mary Broz-Vaughan, Secretary



PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Five minute public comment, per person, with the
exception of any open disciplinary or application files.



Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works
Operators and Onsite Sewage Systems
Professionals

Update on Regulatory Actions

(as of June 17, 2021)

Action: Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators Licensing
Regulations — 2021 Fee Adjustment

Current Stage: NOIRA
e Board authorized filing of NOIRA on 1/14/21.
e NOIRA filed on 2/2/21; currently in executive branch review.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment

e Following completion of executive branch review, NOIRA to be submitted for publication in
irgini ister and open for 30-day public comment.

Action: Onsite Sewage System Professionals Licensing Regulations —
2021 Fee Adjustment

Current Stage: NOIRA
e Board authorized filing of NOIRA on 1/14/21.
e NOIRA filed on 2/2/21; currently in executive branch review.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment
e Following completion of executive branch review, NOIRA to be submitted for publication in
Virginia Register and open for 30-day public comment.




WWO 2021 CPE AUDIT REPORT




EXAMINATION UPDATES




Client:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:

6/24/2021 at 10:05:40 AM

PFA Summary

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

PFA Summary

1/1/2017 through 6/24/2021
Delivery Method: ALL

Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 1 Examination - VAWW1

Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Exam Type: Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 1 Examination - CLASS1

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 210 34 16.2% 176  83.8% 8 3.7% 218
Repeater 333 71 21.3% 262  78.7% 10 2.9% 343
Total 543 105 19.3% 438  80.7% 18 3.2% 561
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 2 Examination - VAWW2
Exam Type: Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 2 Examination - CLASS2

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 338 95 28.1% 243 71.9% 6 1.7% 344
Repeater 369 82 22.2% 287  77.8% 16 4.2% 385
Total 707 177 25.0% 530 75.0% 22 3.0% 729
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 3 Examination - VAWW3
Exam Type: Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 3 Examination - CLASS3

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 347 109 31.4% 238  68.6% 9 2.5% 356
Repeater 374 108 28.9% 266  71.1% 6 1.6% 380
Total 721 217 30.1% 504  69.9% 15 2.0% 736
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Examination - VAWW4
Exam Type: Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Examination - CLASS4

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 386 120 31.1% 266  68.9% 8 2.0% 394
Repeater 495 117 23.6% 378 76.4% 12 2.4% 507
Total 881 237 26.9% 644  73.1% 20 2.2% 901

Page 1 of 3

Version 1.1



Client:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:

6/24/2021 at 10:05:40 AM

PFA Summary

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

PFA Summary

1/1/2017 through 6/24/2021
Delivery Method: ALL

Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 1 Examination - VAWAL1

Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 1 Examination - CLASS1

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 188 45 23.9% 143 76.1% 1 0.5% 189
Repeater 279 56 20.1% 223 79.9% 11 3.8% 290
Total 467 101 21.6% 366  78.4% 12 2.5% 479
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 2 Examination - VAWA2
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 2 Examination - CLASS2

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 222 112 50.5% 110  49.5% 7 3.1% 229
Repeater 262 61 23.3% 201 76.7% 10 3.7% 272
Total 484 173 35.7% 311  64.3% 17 3.4% 501
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 3 Examination - VAWA3
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 3 Examination - CLASS3

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 270 151 55.9% 119 44.1% 11 3.9% 281
Repeater 212 81 38.2% 131 61.8% 5 2.3% 217
Total 482 232 48.1% 250 51.9% 16 3.2% 498
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 4 Examination - VAWA4
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 4 Examination - CLASS4

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 234 145 62.0% 89 38.0% 9 3.7% 243
Repeater 115 45 39.1% 70  60.9% 2 1.7% 117
Total 349 190 54.4% 159 45.6% 11 3.1% 360

Page 2 of 3

Version 1.1



Client:

Test Program:

Test Program:

6/24/2021 at 10:05:40 AM
PFA Summary

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

PFA Summary

1/1/2017 through 6/24/2021
Delivery Method: ALL

Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 5 Examination - VAWAS

Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 5 Examination - CLASS5

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 87 73 83.9% 14  16.1% 2 2.2% 89
Repeater 18 7 38.9% 11 61.1% 0 0.0% 18
Total 105 80 76.2% 25 23.8% 2 1.9% 107
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 6 Examination - VAWAG
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 6 Examination - CLASS6

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 52 32 61.5% 20 38.5% 0 0.0% 52
Repeater 26 12 46.2% 14  53.8% 2 7.1% 28
Total 78 44 56.4% 34 43.6% 2 2.5% 80

Page 3 of 3

Version 1.1



DISCUSSION OF LEGISLATIVE
PROPOSAL TO ADD OSSP
REPRESENTATION TO THE BOARD




DPOR UPDATES ASIT RELATES TO
COVID-19 RESPONSE




Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation

Statement of Financial-Activity

Board for WWWOOSSP

954530
2020-2022 Biennium May 2021
Biennium-to-Date Comparison
May 2021 July 2018 - July 2020 -
Activity May 2019 May 2021

Cash/Revenue Balance Brought Forward 15,919
Revenues 11,931 201,290 281,832
Cumulative Revenues 297,751
Cost Categories:

Board Expenditures 2,787 26,785 25,565

Board Administration 6,828 83,329 78,072

Administration of Exams 1,201 16,393 13,735

Enforcement 450 4,928 4,931

Legal Services 0 1,060 892

Information Systems 3,396 61,220 52,885

Facilities and Support Services 3,744 35,341 42,790

Agency Administration 3,371 37,674 36,115

Other / Transfers 0 0 0
Total Expenses 21,777 266,728 254,984

Transfer To/(From) Cash Reserves (902) 0 (57,403)
Ending Cash/Revenue Balance 100,169

Cash Reserve Beginning Balance 118,728 175,229

Change in Cash Reserve (902) 0 (57,403)

Cash Reserve Ending Balance 117,826 0 117,826

Number of Regulants
Current Month 5,813
Previous Biennium-to-Date 5,810




UPDATE ON OUTREACH OPPORTUNITIES




OTHER BUSINESS




COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
FORMS AND

TRAVEL VOUCHERS




ADJOURN

Please return your document folders to Tanya Pettus.
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 01                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Good afternoon.  My

 02  name is Jessica Eldridge and I'm a designee of the

 03  Board.  This is an informal fact-finding conference to

 04  hear additional information regarding the regulatory

 05  issues involved with your application for licensure.

 06                       On the IFF conference call today is

 07  Conor O'Donnell who's assisting.  We also have a court

 08  reporter present.  The court reporter will make a

 09  transcript of everything that is said and that

 10  transcript will become an official part of your file.

 11                       I now convene the conference to

 12  accept presentation from those individuals who are

 13  present.  Before I have you state your name, sir, just a

 14  few housekeeping items.

 15                       Because we are doing the IFF

 16  conference by telephone, I ask that you please speak

 17  slowly and clearly for purposes of making an accurate

 18  transcript.

 19                       I also would ask that if I have

 20  questions or if Mr. O'Donnell has questions, if you

 21  would allow us to ask the entire question before you

 22  beginning answering.

 23                       It appears if we speak over one

 24  another, the conference call line cuts out which affects

 25  the accuracy of the transcript.
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 01                       If you are providing testimony and

 02  it appears that somebody is attempting to interrupt you,

 03  most likely it is myself or the court reporter who is

 04  trying to clarify something that was just said for the

 05  transcript.

 06                       I would ask that you please stop

 07  giving testimony for a moment so that we can clarify

 08  whatever the issue is.  All of this is important because

 09  not only will I read the transcript again following

 10  today's IFF conference, but all members of the Board

 11  will as well when they review my recommendation and your

 12  application.

 13                       With that being said, Mr. Cox, if

 14  you could please state your full name and mailing

 15  address for the record.

 16                       MR. COX:  My first name Matthew,

 17  last name Cox, address 1221 White Birch Lane, Virginia

 18  Beach, Virginia 23453.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  And, Mr.

 20  Cox, are you participating by yourself today or do you

 21  have any witnesses?

 22                       MR. COX:  I'm by myself.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 24  Mr. O'Donnell, if you could introduce the exhibits.

 25                       MR. O'DONNELL:  Yes.  Board Exhibit
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 01  1 is the informal fact-finding referral memorandum.

 02  Board Exhibit 2 is notice of IFF by telephone.

 03                       Board Exhibit 3 is notice of

 04  canceled IFF.  Board Exhibit 4 is e-mail notice of

 05  canceled IFF.  Board Exhibit 5 is amended notice of IFF

 06  by telephone.

 07                            NOTE:  The above referred to

 08  documents are now being marked as Board Exhibit Nos.  1

 09  through 5, respectively.

 10                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  Sir, the

 11  reason you're appearing for an informal fact-finding

 12  conference today is you disclosed prior criminal

 13  convictions on your application for licensure.

 14                       The Board has asked us to convene

 15  this conference to get the facts and circumstances

 16  surrounding those convictions.  In addition, we're going

 17  to talk a little bit about your work history and your

 18  plans moving forward if granted licensure.

 19                       The first conviction that I need to

 20  ask you about is dated April 29th of 2003, in the

 21  Circuit Court for Virginia Beach, Virginia.  You were

 22  convicted of discharging a firearm or a missile in or at

 23  an occupied building, a felony.

 24                       Regarding this conviction you were

 25  sentenced to three years with three years suspended
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 01  followed by supervised probation.  What specifically

 02  happened that led to this conviction?

 03                       MR. COX:  It pretty much was a --

 04  what the record doesn't state, it was pretty much a

 05  self-defense thing, and I was being shot at and I

 06  returned fire and it happened to go into somebody's

 07  house.

 08                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Why were you

 09  being shot at?

 10                       MR. COX:  It was -- it was a thing

 11  that happened at the club one night, a kid being young

 12  and stupid.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And so after

 14  being at the club you returned home?

 15                       MR. COX:  No, I was at a friend's

 16  house, and when I walked out the friend's house they

 17  started shooting.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Were you

 19  injured at all?

 20                       MR. COX:  But I -- no, ma'am.  But I

 21  was -- I was licensed to carry then a concealed weapon,

 22  and then when I got convicted of the charge they took my

 23  license from me.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  So you then --

 25  you had a handgun on you?
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 01                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  But you had a

 03  license to carry that at the time?

 04                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you

 06  returned fire, so did the rounds then go into a

 07  neighboring house?

 08                       MR. COX:  Yes.  Yes, ma'am.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Was anybody

 10  injured in the neighboring home by the gunfire?

 11                       MR. COX:  No, ma'am.

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you know

 13  who called law enforcement?

 14                       MR. COX:  No, ma'am.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Did law

 16  enforcement respond to the scene at your friend's home?

 17                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 19  as a result of this felony conviction you lost your

 20  firearms rights if I'm understanding and the privilege

 21  to carry a concealed weapon?

 22                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on May

 24  22nd of 2003, in the Circuit Court for Virginia Beach,

 25  Virginia, you were convicted of possession of marijuana,
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 01  a misdemeanor.

 02                       It looks like regarding this

 03  conviction you were fined.  Do you recall what happened

 04  that led to your conviction for possession of marijuana?

 05                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.  I was pulled

 06  over and they found a joint.

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 08  why you were originally pulled over in your vehicle?

 09                       MR. COX:  Yeah, it was -- he said he

 10  had heard -- he heard me before he seen me, so he pulled

 11  me for speeding but I never got a speeding ticket for

 12  it.  He just -- that was the reason for pulling me over.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And the

 14  marijuana that was in your possession, that was for

 15  personal use at the time?

 16                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 17                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Do you recall what

 18  your fine amount was?

 19                       MR. COX:  Not offhand.  I think it

 20  was about $500, somewhere about there.

 21                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  That sounds

 22  correct.  Then on April 9th of 2003, in the General

 23  District Court for Virginia Beach, Virginia, you were

 24  convicted of disorderly conduct, a misdemeanor.

 25                       You were sentenced to 30 days of
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 01  incarceration with 30 days suspended and then placed on

 02  probation and received a fine.  What specifically

 03  happened that led to this disorderly conduct conviction?

 04                       MR. COX:  I think that's the one

 05  when me -- I think me and the officer didn't see eye to

 06  eye, and I mean, I think he gave me a ticket for

 07  disorderly conduct if I'm remembering correctly.

 08                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  It looks like the

 09  incident took place in February of 2003 and then you

 10  were convicted a few months later in April of 2003.  Do

 11  you recall where you were or what you were doing that

 12  led you to have this disagreement with law enforcement?

 13                       MR. COX:  No, ma'am.  I can't even

 14  recall that charge.

 15                       MR. COX:  Okay.  Then on June 9th of

 16  2004 in the Circuit Court for Virginia Beach, Virginia,

 17  you were convicted of the manufacture or sell or

 18  possession of a controlled substance which is a felony.

 19                       You were sentenced to ten years of

 20  incarceration with seven years and five months suspended

 21  followed by supervised probation.  What specifically

 22  happened that led to that conviction?

 23                       MR. COX:  I was going to make a sale

 24  and I was set up.

 25                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Did you sell
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 01  to an informant?

 02                       MR. COX:  No.  Yeah, he was an

 03  informant, but he had called me, but I never got a

 04  chance to sell to him.  They got to him before I did it.

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And there was

 06  an undercover law enforcement officer there?

 07                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 08                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What type of

 09  drugs were you attempting to sell?

 10                       MR. COX:  Cocaine.

 11                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  This is back

 12  in 2004.  Were you regularly selling cocaine during that

 13  time period?

 14                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Back in 2004,

 16  was that your primary source of income?

 17                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 19  how much cocaine it was alleged you were going to sell

 20  to the informant?

 21                       MR. COX:  I think it was a half an

 22  ounce.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Were you

 24  arrested at the scene?

 25                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.
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 01                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What have you

 02  learned or how have you changed following these

 03  convictions?

 04                       MR. COX:  Well, as you can see that

 05  most of the charges are 17, 18 years old, so it taught

 06  me a tough lesson.  I haven't really been in no trouble

 07  since then.  The time --

 08                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Go ahead, sir.

 09                       MR. COX:  Yeah, the time -- the time

 10  that they give you doesn't -- it doesn't equal to the

 11  amount of -- it's not worth it at the end of the day,

 12  and that's what I was -- I was taught a hard lesson, but

 13  it made me who I am today.

 14                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Regarding your

 15  period of incarceration, when were you released the last

 16  time?

 17                       MR. COX:  2000 -- it was August

 18  14th, 2006.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Once you were

 20  released from incarceration, can you walk me through

 21  what your work history was, the places you've worked and

 22  what you've done?

 23                       MR. COX:  Yeah.  I went to -- I went

 24  to work for my mom's husband doing plumbing, and then I

 25  -- I acquired my CDL license and went to work for U.S.
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 01  Express driving over the road, and then in 2015 I ended

 02  up where I am right now at Forrest Sewer Pump Service.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  How long were

 04  you driving a truck with your CDL license?

 05                       MR. COX:  What, over the road?

 06                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Yes, um-hum.

 07                       MR. COX:  I did it for like six

 08  months and I didn't like being away from my family so I

 09  just went ahead and found a local job.

 10                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 11  you also worked for family in a plumbing business for a

 12  period of time.  How long were you in plumbing?

 13                       MR. COX:  About three years before I

 14  got into driving trucks.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Does your

 16  family plumbing business have a name it operates under?

 17                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.  It's John

 18  Wright's Home Improvement.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And then you

 20  said that following those periods of employment you went

 21  to work for Forrest Sewer Pump Service and you've been

 22  there ever since?

 23                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am, since 2015.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you're

 25  currently a pump truck supervisor; is that correct?
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 01                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  You're now

 03  seeking a license as a conventional onsite sewage

 04  operator journeyman.  What are your plans moving forward

 05  if that's granted?

 06                       MR. COX:  My plan's to hold the

 07  license and just to be a better person, better asset to

 08  the company that I'm working for now.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What do you

 10  like about working --

 11                       MR. COX:  And then proceed to my

 12  master's license.  Sorry about that.  Eventually getting

 13  my master's.

 14                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What do you

 15  like about working for Forrest Sewer Pump Service?

 16                       MR. COX:  I like everything about

 17  it, you know, every day is something different.  You

 18  learn a lot on the job, a lot of on-the-job training.

 19  Not every job is the same.  That's what I like about it.

 20                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And while you

 21  were incarcerated, did you participate in any

 22  rehabilitative programs or classes?

 23                       MR. COX:  Yes.  I took every

 24  program, anger management, breaking barriers, productive

 25  citizenship, substance abuse class.  I took pretty much
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 01  all the programs that they had where I was at.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And it looks

 03  like you were on probation for a period of time

 04  following your release.  When -- when did you complete

 05  probation, sir?  Do you recall what year?

 06                       MR. COX:  I think it was 2016, 2013.

 07  I can't -- I know they had let me off early, but then

 08  they still -- they let me off early supervised but then

 09  it was unsupervised.  I think it was 2013 and I was

 10  complete with it.

 11                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And when you

 12  were incarcerated, did you hold any type of job in the

 13  facility?

 14                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 16                       MR. COX:  I was a laundry man and a

 17  school aid.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And the school

 19  aid, was that for the GED program or what type of

 20  schooling?

 21                       MR. COX:  It was for auto body, auto

 22  body repair.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And any other

 24  work history before you were incarcerated?  Did you have

 25  any other jobs we haven't spoken about.
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 01                       MR. COX:  No, ma'am.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you

 03  mentioned your family.  Are you a father?

 04                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am, father of

 05  three.

 06                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What are the

 07  ages of your children?

 08                       MR. COX:  15, 14, and 10.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And it looks

 10  like your civil rights to vote, hold public office, and

 11  serve on a jury were restored here in Virginia in 2016;

 12  is that correct?

 13                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 14                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  You mention

 15  that following that first conviction we spoke about in

 16  Virginia Beach regarding the discharge of your firearm

 17  you had lost your firearms privileges at that time.

 18  Have you had your firearm rights restored?

 19                       MR. COX:  No, but I'm in the process

 20  of doing it now.

 21                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Is there

 22  anything else you would like to share with us about who

 23  you are today or anything I've not specifically asked

 24  you about as we consider your application?

 25                       MR. COX:  Yeah, I would just ask not
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 01  to be judged by my past.  I mean, moving forward now if

 02  you can see I haven't been in trouble in a long time.

 03                       I've become a better person, a

 04  better man.  I just want to be a better asset to the

 05  company and my family.

 06                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 07  Did you complete high school?

 08                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.  I did --

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 10                       MR. COX:  -- home schooling.

 11                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And did you

 12  complete any additional school after high school?  Did

 13  you go to community college or do anything else?

 14                       MR. COX:  Yes.  I went to get my CDL

 15  license, my commercial driver's license.

 16                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And that was

 17  through Tidewater Community College?

 18                       MR. COX:  Yes, ma'am.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 20  Mr. O'Donnell, do you have any additional questions for

 21  Mr. Cox?

 22                       MR. O'DONNELL:  I do not.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  If there's

 24  nothing further, sir, let me explain the process from

 25  today moving forward.
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 01                       Based upon everything I've heard and

 02  everything I've read, I'll put my thoughts together into

 03  a written recommendation.

 04                       The Department will mail you a copy

 05  of my recommendation along with a letter letting you

 06  know the date and time where the full Board will meet to

 07  make a final decision concerning your application.

 08                       You're welcome to attend that Board

 09  meeting, but you do not have to.  If you do attend the

 10  Board meeting, the Board will give you an opportunity to

 11  address the full Board before they make their final

 12  decision.

 13                       Generally what happens is the Board

 14  would briefly hear from you.  They will discuss your

 15  case and then they'll vote right then and there that

 16  day.  So if you do attend the Board meeting, you'll know

 17  the final outcome concerning your application that day.

 18                       If you choose not to attend or are

 19  unable to do so, the Board will still follow up with you

 20  by letter a couple of days after the Board meeting.  One

 21  think you need to understand is I can recommend yes and

 22  the full Board could say no or the other way around.

 23                       It's a majority vote of the entire

 24  Board that makes the final decision.  Do you have any

 25  additional questions for me, sir?
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 01                       MR. COX:  No, ma'am.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  If there's

 03  nothing further, then I'll thank you very much for your

 04  time and I will conclude the conference and we're off

 05  record.

 06                            NOTE:  The hearing concluded at

 07  1:30 p.m.

 08  
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 01                CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER

 02  

 03                      I, Claudia M. Whisenand, hereby

 04  certify that I was the Court Reporter at the Informal

 05  Fact-Finding Conference regarding Matthew Gene Cox,

 06  heard in the County of Henrico, Virginia, on May 4,

 07  2021, at the time of the hearing herein.

 08                      I further certify that the foregoing

 09  transcript is, to the best of my ability, a true and

 10  accurate record of the testimony and incidents of the

 11  hearing herein.

 12                      Given under my hand this 10th day of

 13  May, 2021.

 14  

 15  

 16                           _____________________________

                              Claudia M.  Whisenand

 17                           Notary Registration No. 291277

 18  
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 20  My Commission expires:
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 01                           NOTE:  The hearing commences at

 02  9:00 a.m., as follows:

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Good morning.  My

 04  name is Jessica Eldridge and I'm a designee of the

 05  Board.  This is an informal fact-finding conference to

 06  hear additional information regarding the regulatory

 07  issues involved with your application for licensure.

 08                       On the IFF conference call today is

 09  Conor O'Donnell who's assisting.  We also have a court

 10  reporter present.  The court reporter will make a

 11  transcript of everything that is said and that

 12  transcript will become an official part of your file.

 13                       I now convene the conference to

 14  accept presentation from those individuals who are

 15  present.  Before I have everyone introduce themselves, a

 16  few housekeeping items.

 17                       Because we are doing the IFF

 18  conference by telephone, I ask that you please speak

 19  slowly and clearly for purposes of making an accurate

 20  transcript.

 21                       In addition, if I have questions or

 22  if Mr. O'Donnell has questions, I would ask that you

 23  please allow us to ask the entire question before you

 24  begin answering.

 25                       If individuals speak over one
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 01  another, the IFF line conference call line cuts out

 02  which makes it difficult to make an accurate transcript.

 03                       If you are providing IFF testimony

 04  and it appears that somebody is trying to interrupt you,

 05  I would ask that you please take a break from providing

 06  testimony for a moment.  Most likely it is myself or the

 07  court reporter seeking clarification on something that

 08  is unclear.

 09                       And since we are joined by several

 10  witnesses today, I will give everybody an opportunity to

 11  speak.  I would ask that you not answer questions at the

 12  same time for the same reasons that individuals cannot

 13  speak over myself or Mr. O'Donnell.  It interferes with

 14  the transcript.

 15                       This is important because not only

 16  will I read the transcript again following today's IFF

 17  conference, but it'll be provided to all members of the

 18  Board when they review Ms. Purrington's application.

 19                       With that being said, Ms.

 20  Purrington, if you can please state your full name and

 21  mailing address for the record.

 22                       MS. PURRINGTON:  Avis Kaye

 23  Purrington, mailing address 9208 Tweed, T-W-E-E-D.

 24  That's Tweed Place, Glen Allen, Virginia 23060.

 25                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  And it's
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 01  my understanding that we're joined today by Ms. Logan.

 02  If you could please state your full name and mailing

 03  address for the record.

 04                       MS. LOGAN:  My name is Annette K.

 05  Logan.  My mailing address is 1000 County Park Place,

 06  Richmond, Virginia 23223.

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  And, Ms.

 08  Logan, in what capacity are you familiar with Ms.

 09  Purrington?

 10                       MS. LOGAN:  I am over the accounts

 11  payable unit for the Wastewater Treatment Plant

 12  Department of Public Utilities.  My area supports Avis

 13  administratively.  We process her purchase orders as

 14  well as pay invoices for her area.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 16                       MS. LOGAN:  You're welcome.

 17                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  And it's my

 18  understanding Mr. Bradley is also participating today.

 19  Sir, if you could please state your full name and

 20  mailing address.

 21                       MR. BRADLEY:  Patrick Bradley, 5313

 22  Bindery Lane, Richmond, Virginia 23230.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  And in

 24  what capacity are you familiar with Ms. Purrington?

 25                       MR. BRADLEY:  I'm Ms. Purrington's
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 01  supervisor.  I'm the deputy director for collection

 02  systems and regulatory affairs for the Department of

 03  Public Utilities.

 04                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you, sir.  Mr.

 05  O'Donnell, if you could please introduce the exhibits at

 06  this time.

 07                       MR. O'DONNELL:  Yes.  Board Exhibit

 08  1 is the IFF referral memorandum.  Board Exhibit 2 is

 09  the licensing profile.  Board Exhibit 3 is notice of

 10  informal fact-finding conference.

 11                       Board Exhibit 4 is notice of

 12  cancelled IFF.  Board Exhibit 5 is amended notice of

 13  IFF.  Board Exhibit 6 is notice of cancelled IFF.  Board

 14  Exhibit 7 is e-mailed notice of cancelled IFF.  Board

 15  Exhibit 8 is second amended notice of IFF.

 16                            NOTE:  The above referred to

 17  documents are now being marked as Board Exhibit Nos. 1

 18  through 8, respectively.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  The

 20  reason, ma'am, that you're appearing for an informal

 21  fact-finding conference today is that you've applied for

 22  licensure; however, the application was not received

 23  prior to the expiration date.

 24                       And because it falls within, outside

 25  of the expiration date window of one year, you were then
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 01  asking for a waiver of the requirement for examination.

 02                       The Board has asked us to convene

 03  this conference to get the facts and circumstances

 04  surrounding your application.  We'll also talk a little

 05  bit about your work history and then your plans moving

 06  forward if licensure is granted.

 07                       So I guess I'll begin with you, Ms.

 08  Purrington.  I notice some of this information is the

 09  written materials that you provided with your

 10  application, but if you could go ahead and explain in

 11  your own words why your application was not received

 12  within the reinstatement period.

 13                       MS. PURRINGTON:  I'm not exactly

 14  sure what happened on the accounts payable part.  I do

 15  know that DPOR submitted the application for renewal of

 16  my Class 1 waterworks license.  I submitted that in a

 17  timely manner to the accounts payable section.

 18                       I know that a PO was generated, and

 19  exactly what happened, and then I may need a little

 20  assistance with this, exactly what happened with that PO

 21  I'm not exactly sure.  The PO that was generated is in

 22  the packet that I submitted.

 23                       The date of that PO was February the

 24  25th of 2019.  My license was due to expire on February

 25  the 28th of 2019.  My renewal packet was submitted to
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 01  accounts payable well in advance of the -- the

 02  generation of that PO, so I'm not exactly sure what

 03  happened with that PO.

 04                       Annette, can you assist me with

 05  that?

 06                       MS. LOGAN:  Yes, ma'am.  Again, this

 07  is Annette Logan.  The -- the accounts payable person I

 08  did have to review this with her to determine exactly

 09  what happened.

 10                       As Avis, Ms. Purrington, stated she

 11  did submit her information well before the expiration

 12  date which is typically what everyone does that holds a

 13  license for wastewater.  They submit it well in advance.

 14                       It is my understanding from the AP

 15  person that was processing this, she received the

 16  information from Avis, and sometimes when we receive

 17  these requests from different individuals, they could

 18  come in like one or two ways.

 19                       Sometimes they'll submit a request

 20  on an internal document to let us know, okay, we need to

 21  move forward with the requisition which creates the

 22  purchase order so I'll be able to pay my license

 23  whenever I receive an invoice.

 24                       So when this person received the

 25  information from Ms. Purrington, she set up, I'm not
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 01  sure exactly the date that Ms. Purrington submitted the

 02  package, but the purchase order which is included in the

 03  package that you guys received was not created until

 04  February the 25th of 2019.

 05                       Of course, you could see at that

 06  time we were -- we were pretty much on borrowed time.

 07  Unfortunately, what happened, the individual that

 08  received Ms. Purrington's package did not realize that

 09  the application that was submitted could be used as a

 10  payment method to get that process and her renewal taken

 11  care of.

 12                       So the person that received the

 13  package held on to the paperwork that she received from

 14  Ms. Purrington, and evidently in the process of waiting

 15  it just slipped her mind that Ms. Purrington's payment

 16  needed to be made before February the 28th.

 17                       So instead of her reaching out to

 18  find out where's the invoice or am I going to get any

 19  type of receipt so I could use to make the payment, she

 20  didn't realize that the application itself could be used

 21  as a payment process.

 22                       So it just sat for, from what I can

 23  understand for several months, and it was not recognized

 24  until we were going through our normal process to go in

 25  and close out purchase orders that we did not use during
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 01  the fiscal year.

 02                       And during that time is when she

 03  realized that she had not made that payment, and then

 04  when we all start researching we found that she actually

 05  had the application on hand at the same -- at that time.

 06                       And what I want to add to that is

 07  during that whole process approximately 30 something odd

 08  license renewals were processed and they were processed

 09  in a timely manner and no one else had the issue, so I'm

 10  just going to say this just was a complete oversight on

 11  this individual's part.

 12                       And as soon as we found out what

 13  happened we made several calls to DPOR.  We spoke to a

 14  couple of different people.  We found out that in

 15  addition to the $50 we had to do another $25, and I want

 16  to say that may have been for a late fee or something of

 17  that sort.

 18                       We immediately did another purchase

 19  order at that time and the payment was immediately

 20  mailed when it came to our attention that this had not

 21  been taken care of, and that's basically what happened

 22  in this -- in this issue.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Ms.

 24  Purrington, it sounds like one of the issues was that

 25  everything was handed off to accounts payable, but then
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 01  you as the license holder there was no further follow up

 02  with DPOR to ensure that everything was received to

 03  renew your license timely.

 04                       If your license is granted this

 05  time, would you handle this renewal process differently,

 06  or what have you learned as a result of this experience?

 07                       MS. PURRINGTON:  I most definitely

 08  would handle it differently.  I will say that in the 30

 09  plus years that I've held my Class 1 license when the

 10  renewal of documents come in, I submit it to accounts

 11  payable.

 12                       And this is the first time I've had

 13  this -- this type of issue.  I would handle this

 14  differently in that I would write -- I would submit a

 15  personal check for the license renewal and then seek

 16  reimbursement from -- from the city for that payment.

 17                       I just wouldn't want this to -- to

 18  happen again.  I'm not exactly -- as Annette explained

 19  my renewal documents fell through the cracks and I'm

 20  really sorry about that, but you know my license is on

 21  the line with this.

 22                       And I really would like a waiver or

 23  reinstatement of my Class 1 license.

 24                       MS. LOGAN:  And if I can add as

 25  well, I've been working with the City of Richmond for
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 01  almost 30 years, and I've been in the same location and

 02  we have renewed many, many licenses over the years and

 03  to my knowledge this is the first time this has ever

 04  happened.

 05                       And we are so apologetic that that

 06  fell through the cracks.  The only thing I can say is

 07  the person did have the documentation and just failed to

 08  follow up, and we do apologize because I know this is

 09  taking up a lot of people's time.

 10                       But as I said and, you know, and I

 11  can ensure Avis and the Board that we're going to take

 12  additional precautions as well within the AP section to

 13  ensure this does not happen again if Avis chooses to

 14  submit her application in that manner again.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 16                       MS. LOGAN:  You're welcome.

 17                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  I also want to get

 18  some information regarding your work history.  Before I

 19  do that, Mr. Bradley, is there anything you wanted to

 20  add regarding issues surrounding the PO, or were you

 21  here primarily to speak on Ms. Purrington's work history

 22  and background with the city?

 23                       MR. BRADLEY:  Primarily for work

 24  history and background and just point out the fact that

 25  she is our quality control officer, and her attention to
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 01  detail is commendable, and this really is just an

 02  anomaly that this fell through the cracks.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 04  Ms. Purrington, can you walk me through your work

 05  history?

 06                       MS. PURRINGTON:  All right.  I've

 07  been with the city.  I've actually been a water

 08  professional for over 30 years.  I came to the -- I came

 09  to the city with my Class 1 waterworks license.  One of

 10  my proudest moments was obtaining my Class 1 waterworks

 11  license.

 12                       My entire career has been dedicated

 13  to serving and protecting public health and the

 14  environment.  I -- as -- as my supervisor just stated I

 15  am the -- I am the quality -- quality assurance manager

 16  for our -- for our laboratory.

 17                       So basically I'm looking at every

 18  result, every quality control step that's taken with a

 19  sample result to make sure that that result is -- is in

 20  control.  I look at -- I process reports for BDH and

 21  DEQ.

 22                       I make sure that we are in

 23  compliance with the state and that all rules and

 24  regulations are -- are followed as I stated and that we

 25  are in compliance.  I thoroughly enjoy my job and what I
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 01  do.

 02                       One thing I've also done in -- in

 03  obtaining and maintaining my Class 1 license is meeting

 04  all the requirements, the continuing education units

 05  that's required with that Class 1 license.

 06                       This -- this is what I do.  This is

 07  what I do every day.  For me it's about serving and

 08  protecting and ensuring that the environment is not --

 09  is safe.

 10                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  Mr.

 11  Bradley, what would you like to share with us as we

 12  review Ms. Purrington's application?

 13                       MR. BRADLEY:  Avis actually covered

 14  all of the, you know, her job as the quality control

 15  person for both our -- actually both the water and

 16  wastewater lab, and the fact that she is a Class 1

 17  waterworks license holder makes her position even more

 18  valuable because she is the primary interface between

 19  the operations and all the chemical testing that we have

 20  to do for the DEQ and BDH in order to stay compliant.

 21                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  Ms.

 22  Purrington, have you ever been licensed anywhere outside

 23  of Virginia?

 24                       MS. PURRINGTON:  No, I have not.

 25                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Is there
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 01  anything else, ma'am, you would like to share with us

 02  today regarding the situation surrounding your

 03  application or anything else I've not specifically asked

 04  you about as we consider your application?

 05                       MS. PURRINGTON:  Well, as soon as --

 06  as soon as I learned and normally when I submit my

 07  renewal packet the licenses come in and they post it,

 08  you know, they hang all the licenses at -- at the

 09  facility demonstrating who -- who holds what license.

 10                       As soon as I learned that my license

 11  had expired and I thank accounts payable for all that

 12  they've done in trying to get this -- this situation

 13  resolved, as soon as I found out about it, I immediately

 14  wrote a letter to DPOR requesting this -- this

 15  fact-finding conference.

 16                       As I stated my entire career has

 17  been dedicated to serving and protecting public health

 18  and the environment.  This Class 1 license -- anyone who

 19  holds a license in -- in this field, this is a major

 20  accomplishment, and anyone who holds it should be very

 21  proud of that, and I am.

 22                       I'm just, you know, I thank the

 23  Board for this informal fact-finding conference.  I'm

 24  asking for a reconsideration and to reinstate my license

 25  and I guess at that particular point -- I think that's
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 01  -- that's about all I have to say.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And

 03  specifically you were asking for waiver of the

 04  examination requirement.  Can you just briefly speak why

 05  you're asking for the examination to be waived?

 06                       MS. PURRINGTON:  Well, when I

 07  obtained my Class 1 license I was -- I was in my 20s.

 08  I'm a little long in the tooth now, and that math was a

 09  killer then, and I -- I can -- I'm fairly certain it's

 10  still a killer now.

 11                       I just wouldn't want to have to sit

 12  for that Class 1 examination again.  If I had -- if I

 13  had forgot to turn in my paperwork, my renewal

 14  paperwork, absolutely, but this error was -- was not

 15  mine.  This was not my error.  This was a mistake that

 16  was made on someone else's -- on someone else's part.

 17                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 18                       MS. PURRINGTON:  Um-hum.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  If there's nothing --

 20  if there's nothing further today, let me explain the

 21  process from today moving forward.

 22                       Based upon everything I have heard

 23  and everything I have read, I'll put my thoughts

 24  together into a written recommendation.  The Department

 25  will mail you a copy of my recommendation along with a
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 01  letter letting you know the date and time where the full

 02  Board will meet to make the final decision concerning

 03  your application.

 04                       You're welcome to attend that Board

 05  meeting but you do not have to.  If you do attend the

 06  Board meeting, the Board would give you an opportunity

 07  of about five minutes to address the full Board before

 08  they make their final decision.

 09                       Generally what happens is the Board

 10  would briefly hear from you.  They will discuss your

 11  case and then they'll vote right then and there that

 12  day.  So if you do attend the Board meeting, you'll know

 13  the final outcome concerning your application that day.

 14                       If you choose not to attend or you

 15  are unable to do so, the Board will follow up with you a

 16  couple of days after the Board meeting.

 17                       One thing you need to understand is

 18  I can recommend yes and the Board could say no or the

 19  other way around.  It's a majority vote of the entire

 20  Board that makes the final decision.  Do you have any

 21  additional questions for me, ma'am?

 22                       MS. PURRINGTON:  No, not at this

 23  time.  Thank you.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  If there's no

 25  further questions, then I will thank everyone for their
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 01  time and I will conclude the conference and we're off

 02  record.

 03                            NOTE:  The hearing concluded at

 04  9:30 a.m.

 05  
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 09  

 10  
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 02  
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 01                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Good morning.  My

 02  name is Jessica Eldridge and I'm a designee of the

 03  Board.  This is an informal fact-finding conference to

 04  hear additional information regarding the regulatory

 05  issues involved with your application for licensure.

 06                       On the IFF conference call today is

 07  Conor O'Donnell who's assisting.  We also have a court

 08  reporter present.  The court reporter will make a

 09  transcript of everything that is said and that

 10  transcript will become an official part of your file.

 11                       I now convene the conference to

 12  accept presentation from those individuals who are

 13  present.  Before I have you introduce yourself, a few

 14  housekeeping items.

 15                       Because we are doing the IFF

 16  conference by telephone and not in person, it'll be

 17  important that you speak slowly and clearly so that we

 18  can make an accurate transcript.

 19                       In addition, I would ask that you

 20  refrain from speaking over either myself or Mr.

 21  O'Donnell if we have questions.  It's important that we

 22  can ask the entire question before you begin answering.

 23                       If we speak over one another, it

 24  appears that the IFF conference call cuts out which

 25  makes it difficult to make an accurate transcript.  In
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 01  addition, if you're providing testimony and somebody is

 02  attempting to interrupt you, most likely it is myself or

 03  the court reporter seeking clarification on something

 04  that was just said.

 05                       So I ask that you briefly stop

 06  providing testimony so that we can clear up whatever the

 07  matter is for the transcript.

 08                       This is important because not only

 09  will I read the transcript again following today's IFF,

 10  but it'll be provided to all members of the Board for

 11  Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite

 12  Sewage System professionals when they review your

 13  application.

 14                       With that being said, Mr. Turner, if

 15  you can please state your full name and mailing address

 16  for the record.

 17                       MR. TURNER:  (unintelligible)

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Mr. Turner, the

 19  line's cutting out.  I'm having a hard time

 20  understanding.

 21                       MR. TURNER: (unintelligible)

 22                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Can the court

 23  reporter understand Mr. Turner?

 24                       COURT REPORTER:  I cannot.

 25                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Yeah.  Mr. Turner,
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 01  you're going to have to call back in.  You have a lot of

 02  interference or something on your line.

 03                       MR. TURNER:  Okay.

 04                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  We'll briefly

 05  go off record to give Mr. Turner a chance to call back

 06  in.

 07                            NOTE:  Off the record.

 08                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  We're going to

 09  go back on record now.  We briefly went off record

 10  because Mr. Turner was having connection issues.  He has

 11  now redialed back in and it appears we've solved any

 12  problems with the telephone line.

 13                       Mr. Turner, if you could please

 14  state your full name and mailing address for the record.

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Tywan Eugene Turner,

 16  Sr., 2700 Cottage Place, Apartment 179, Greensboro,

 17  North Carolina 27455.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  And you

 19  don't have any witnesses joining you today, correct,

 20  sir?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am, I don't.

 22                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Mr. O'Donnell,

 23  if you could please introduce the exhibits at this time.

 24                       MR. O'DONNELL:  Yes.  Board Exhibit

 25  1 is the informal fact-finding referral memorandum.
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 01  Board Exhibit 2 is a letter requesting applicant contact

 02  information.  Board Exhibit 3 is e-mail from applicant

 03  with new contact information.  Board Exhibit 4 --

 04                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Mr. O'Donnell, can

 05  you speak up a little bit?

 06                       MR. O'DONNELL:  Yes.  Board Exhibit

 07  4 is notice of informal fact-finding conference.  Board

 08  Exhibit 5 additional criminal history documents, and

 09  lastly Board Exhibit 6, notice of additional documents.

 10                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 11                            NOTE:  The above referred to

 12  documents are now being marked as Board Exhibit Nos.  1

 13  through 6, respectively.

 14                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Sir, the reason that

 15  you're appearing for an informal fact-finding conference

 16  today is you disclosed prior criminal convictions on

 17  your application for licensure.

 18                       The Board has asked us to convene

 19  this conference to get the facts and circumstances

 20  surrounding those convictions.  In addition, we'll talk

 21  a little bit about your work history and your plans

 22  moving forward if granted licensure.

 23                       The first convictions that I need to

 24  speak to you about appear to both originate from an

 25  event on May 20th of 1997.  On December 12th of 1997, in
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 01  the Circuit Court for Lynchburg, Virginia you were

 02  convicted of possession of cocaine with intent to

 03  distribute, a felony.

 04                       And on July 29th of 1997, in the

 05  General District Court for Lynchburg, Virginia, you were

 06  convicted of possession of marijuana.

 07                       What specifically happened that led

 08  to these two convictions, sir?

 09                       MR. TURNER:  Well, at this point in

 10  time I just want to say that, you know, I'm not here to

 11  make any excuses, you know, I'm here to, you know, be

 12  honest and straightforward, you know, about my criminal

 13  history.

 14                       At that point in time what happened

 15  in this situation was, you know, my irresponsibility and

 16  my selfishness to, you know, try to take shortcuts in

 17  life.

 18                       You know, I was trying to make some

 19  fast money and I got caught.  I got caught trying to

 20  make, you know, fast money and -- and just trying to

 21  take shortcuts in life, and, you know, that's basically

 22  what happened in May of '97.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  So regarding

 24  this incident, it looks like you were selling cocaine at

 25  the time; is that correct?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I was.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Did you sell

 03  to an undercover officer, an informant, or how did law

 04  enforcement become involved?

 05                       MR. TURNER:  I was just told that,

 06  you know, someone had called in and said that I was

 07  outside selling drugs or whatever the case may be.

 08                       I never sold to, you know, any

 09  undercover cop or anything like that.  The police just,

 10  you know, jumped out of the car and arrested me.

 11                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  And you were also

 12  found in possession of marijuana.  Was this on your

 13  person when they arrested you?

 14                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Was the

 16  marijuana for personal use or were you also selling

 17  marijuana?

 18                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  It was for

 19  personal use.  Yes, ma'am.

 20                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What was your

 21  sentence regarding these convictions?

 22                       MR. TURNER:  I was sentenced -- I

 23  was sentenced to boot camp.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  How long were

 25  you at boot camp?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  I was in boot camp for

 02  4.5 months.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you were

 04  released after 4.5 months?

 05                       MR. TURNER:  Well, I stayed in the

 06  jail until I went to boot camp.  I was in jail maybe

 07  six, seven months, and then I did 4.5 months at the boot

 08  camp.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Were you on

 10  any type of probation after you completed the boot camp?

 11                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I was.

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 13  how long that was?

 14                       MR. TURNER:  I was supposed to be on

 15  there for 18 months, but the probation officer let me

 16  off early.  I think it was like two months early that I

 17  got off probation.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on March

 19  9th of 1999, in the General District Court for

 20  Lynchburg, Virginia, you were convicted of possession of

 21  marijuana, a misdemeanor.

 22                       Do you know what specifically

 23  happened that led to this possession of marijuana

 24  conviction?

 25                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  I don't
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 01  specifically remember, you know, that incident, but --

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 03                       MR. TURNER:  -- you know, I'm not

 04  disputing the evidence, so --

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And this is

 06  for an incident the occurred on January 7th of 1999, but

 07  you don't recall what happened?

 08                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am, not

 09  specifically what happened, but I'm pretty sure it was

 10  for usage.  You know, I have had a, you know, over the

 11  years a marijuana, you know, addiction so it probably

 12  was, you know, for personal use.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  This was a

 14  misdemeanor in 1999, and because of that your Virginia

 15  criminal record shows the conviction but it doesn't say

 16  what your sentence was.  Do you know, did you receive a

 17  fine for this misdemeanor?

 18                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 20  what the fine amount was?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am, I don't.  I

 22  don't.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  But according

 24  to your recollection, you didn't have to serve any time

 25  in jail?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  I didn't

 02  have to serve any time in jail.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on

 04  December 18th of 2000, in the Juvenile and Domestic

 05  Relations Court for Campbell County, Virginia, you were

 06  convicted for violating a protective order, a

 07  misdemeanor, and assault and battery of a family member

 08  also a misdemeanor.

 09                       This appears to be for events that

 10  took place in October of 2000.  What specifically

 11  happened that led to those convictions?

 12                       MR. TURNER:  Me and my kids' mother,

 13  my children's mother, was together at the time, and I

 14  was kind of doing some irresponsible and, you know,

 15  cheating in the relationship and we were kind of going

 16  through some things at the time.

 17                       You know, she -- we kind of, you

 18  know, separated for a minute but we still had a house

 19  together, so me and my children's mother was in the

 20  process of, you know, trying to figure out what was the

 21  situation about, you know, what -- what we was going to

 22  do about the house.

 23                       So I was still kind of, you know,

 24  living there to a certain degree and, you know, one day

 25  I come home and she had someone else in the house.  You
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 01  know, it was another male that was in the house at the

 02  time, and I just kind of, you know, I just kind of

 03  blanked out for a fact seeing that she had somebody in

 04  the house when me and her wasn't officially, you know,

 05  undecided what we was going to do about the house and

 06  about our relationship.

 07                       So I kind of -- I kind of blanked

 08  out about that, so that's where that incident come from.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  So it looks like

 10  before this October incident, the mother of your

 11  children had a protective order placed on you that you

 12  weren't supposed to be at the house; is that correct?

 13                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes,

 14  ma'am.  But --

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  And if I'm

 16  understanding -- go ahead.

 17                       MR. TURNER:  I'm sorry.  I'm sorry.

 18  Go ahead.  No, you go ahead.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  If I'm understanding

 20  though, even though the protective order was put in

 21  place and you weren't supposed to be at the house, at

 22  times you were still going back to the house and would

 23  stay there?

 24                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I was.  I

 25  was still there, and she did that because she was upset
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 01  with me because of the infidelity, the cheating and the

 02  things that I was doing at that point in time.

 03                       So we had -- so she did take out

 04  that protective order, but in that process we was still

 05  trying to work things out, you know, and somewhere along

 06  the line, I don't know what was her thought process, but

 07  I guess she, you know, must have decided that, you know,

 08  she was going to get me back or I don't know, you know,

 09  like I said, when I entered the home one morning, you

 10  know, it was -- it was somebody else that was in the

 11  home, so --

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Were your children at

 13  home at the time when you entered the property and the

 14  other man was there?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, they were.

 16                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  What

 17  specifically happened regarding the assault and battery?

 18  Did you get into some type of physical altercation with

 19  the mother of your children?

 20                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  I got in a

 21  physical altercation with the male that was -- that was

 22  in the home and, --

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 24                       MR. TURNER:  -- you know, once me

 25  and him got in a physical altercation, she just kind of
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 01  ran out and left the children.

 02                       And he kind of ran out and I stayed

 03  there with the children, and when the officer came I was

 04  still in the home when the officer -- when the sheriff

 05  department came I was still in the home with the kids.

 06                       So I, you know, I figured she was

 07  around the corner somewhere or, you know, she was

 08  somewhere in the vicinity, so, you know, once the

 09  sheriff got there, her and the sheriff was together.

 10                       They came in.  I, you know, I told

 11  the sheriff what was going on, you know, I was

 12  handcuffed, tooken to jail and -- and that was that.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Was it a neighbor who

 14  called law enforcement or who called law enforcement?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Ms. Whitehead called

 16  law enforcement.  Once she seen that me and the guy was

 17  into an altercation she ran out of the house and she

 18  called the -- the law.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  And that's your

 20  children's mother?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 22                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 23  you got into the altercation with the man in your home.

 24  Was he injured at all?

 25                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am, he wasn't.
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 01                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Was this a fistfight

 02  or what specifically happened?

 03                       MR. TURNER:  It was more like a, you

 04  know, me and him was just bustling, you know, it wasn't

 05  no fistfight or, you know, he didn't have to go to the

 06  hospital or I didn't have to go to the hospital.

 07                       It was more of a fistfight, I mean,

 08  more of a, you know, a scuffle between him and I.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Was anything -- did

 10  anything physical happen between you and the mother of

 11  your children?  Did you push her or anything like that?

 12                       MR. TURNER:  No.  I never pushed

 13  her.  Like I said, when I entered the home and, you

 14  know, this is 20 years ago and I remember it like it was

 15  yesterday.

 16                       When I entered the home, he was, you

 17  know, on one couch and my baby mother was on -- my

 18  children's mother was on the other couch, and I just ran

 19  straight for him, you know, I just ran straight for him.

 20                       And me and him kind of got to

 21  bustling and scuffling and she jumped up, ran out of the

 22  house, and, you know, seconds later, you know, me and

 23  him broke up and he ran out of the house.  And the kids

 24  was kind of in the back bedroom, so --

 25                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And what was
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 01  your sentence regarding these convictions?

 02                       MR. TURNER:  I did 30 days in jail

 03  and I had to do -- I had to do some type of management,

 04  anger management or something, some type of class.

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Did you

 06  complete the anger management class?

 07                       MR. TURNER:  I did.  Yes, ma'am, I

 08  did.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on

 10  February 8th of 2001, in the General District Court for

 11  Lynchburg, Virginia, you were convicted of being in

 12  contempt of court, a misdemeanor.

 13                       It looks like you were fined for

 14  this.  Why were you found in contempt of court?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  It was one of them

 16  things where I -- I didn't come -- you know what?  It

 17  was -- I came to court but I think I was in the wrong

 18  courtroom or something, and I don't know.

 19                       Somehow, you know, they still found

 20  contempt of court or whatever, but I was there.  I was

 21  present in court at that time.

 22                       I do remember that and -- and I was

 23  just in the wrong courtroom, and, you know, once court

 24  was over and so forth, you know, it came to determine

 25  that I was in the wrong court.  They just set me a new
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 01  court date and that was that.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Do you know why you

 03  were supposed to be in court on that day?

 04                       MR. TURNER:  I don't remember.  I

 05  don't remember, but I do remember the incident about,

 06  you know, me being in the wrong courtroom.

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on March

 08  4th of 2003, in the Circuit Court for Chesterfield

 09  County, Virginia, you were convicted of possession of a

 10  controlled substance, a felony.

 11                       You were sentenced to five years of

 12  incarceration with four years suspended followed by

 13  supervised probation.  What specifically happened that

 14  led to that conviction?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Well, me and a friend

 16  of mine was traveling, and we were traveling going to

 17  Washington DC, and it's just one of those situations

 18  where my criminal behavior just, you know, I was just in

 19  possession of the, you know, of the controlled

 20  substance, you know, it was just part of our criminal

 21  intention and criminal behavior that, you know, led to

 22  this incident.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Were you

 24  traveling in a vehicle?  Was it pulled over?  What

 25  happened?  How did law enforcement become involved?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  I was -- I

 02  was traveling in a vehicle with a -- with a young lady,

 03  and the state trooper pulled us over because, you know,

 04  he said something about the decal sticker on the car,

 05  you know, it was a rental car, you know, but he said

 06  because, you know, the decal sticker was, you know, out

 07  of date on the rental car that was the reason why he

 08  pulled us over.

 09                       And it just so happened that the

 10  young lady's license was suspended and, you know, it was

 11  like one thing led to another and they found the drugs

 12  in, you know, the cocaine in the car.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 14  how much cocaine you were in possession of?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  It was a small amount I

 16  think, 2.2 grams or something like that.

 17                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on March

 18  28th of 2003, in the Circuit Court for Lynchburg,

 19  Virginia, you were convicted of eluding police and

 20  possession of a controlled substance as well as hit and

 21  run causing personal injury or injury to property.

 22                       These were all felonies.  You were

 23  sentenced to two years of incarceration with one year

 24  and six months suspended regarding the eluding police

 25  conviction.
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 01                       You were sentenced to three years of

 02  incarceration with two years and six months suspended

 03  for the hit and run and three years of incarceration

 04  with two years suspended for the possession of a

 05  controlled substance.

 06                       And then following your release

 07  these were all followed by supervised probation.  What

 08  specifically happened that led to these convictions?

 09                       MR. TURNER:  The officer had pulled

 10  me over, and when the officer had pulled me over I knew

 11  that I had the drugs in the car.

 12                       So instead of, you know, the officer

 13  -- me allowing the officer to find the drugs in the car,

 14  you know, I tried to elude the police to get rid of the

 15  drugs.  And in the process of me trying to elude the

 16  police someone, you know, came out and I hit someone.

 17                       And, finally, the officer, you know,

 18  caught me and, you know, and caught the drugs that was

 19  in the car as well.

 20                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Regarding the

 21  hit and run, did you hit or another vehicle or you hit a

 22  pedestrian?

 23                       MR. TURNER:  I hit another vehicle.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Was the person

 25  who was driving the other vehicle injured in the car
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 01  accident?

 02                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  I was

 03  never, you know, informed that, you know, the person was

 04  injured.  I know that the, you know, the car -- it was a

 05  collision with the two cars, but as far as the person

 06  being injured I was never, you know, informed that they

 07  was, you know, injured.

 08                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 09  you were in possession of drugs at the time.  Was this

 10  again cocaine?

 11                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 13  how much cocaine you were in possession of at the time

 14  of this hit and run?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  It was a

 16  small amount.  It was I guess about three grams, 3.7

 17  grams.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And this is

 19  back in 2002.  During this time period, were you still

 20  continuing to sell cocaine?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I was.

 22                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on

 23  October 17th of 2008, in the Circuit Court for

 24  Lynchburg, Virginia, you were convicted of attempt to

 25  distribute marijuana, possession of a Schedule I or II
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 01  controlled substance.

 02                       Both of these are felonies.

 03  Regarding the convictions, you were sentenced to seven

 04  years incarceration with five years suspended followed

 05  by supervised probation for the possession of a Schedule

 06  I or II.  And regarding the distribution of marijuana

 07  conviction, you were sentenced to five years with four

 08  years suspended.

 09                       What specifically happened that led

 10  to these convictions?

 11                       MR. TURNER:  I was driving a car and

 12  the officer got behind me, and the officer, when he

 13  pulled me over, he said that I looked like someone.

 14                       And he asked me did I have

 15  identification, so I gave him my identification, and

 16  when he -- when my name was ran in I was driving on

 17  suspended license so that gave him probable cause to

 18  search the car, and when he searched the car he found --

 19  found the drugs.

 20                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  How much

 21  marijuana were you in possession of?

 22                       MR. TURNER:  I'm trying to remember

 23  here.  I -- I don't recall how much marijuana it was,

 24  but I was in possession of it.

 25                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And then
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 01  regarding the possession of a Schedule I or II, was that

 02  cocaine again?

 03                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  It was --

 04  it was residue, yes, ma'am.

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Other than the

 06  residue that was found, were you in possession of any

 07  other cocaine at the time?

 08                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  No, ma'am,

 09  I wasn't.

 10                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Okay.  And

 11  just to correct the record, I believe that I switched

 12  the sentences, so to clarify for the distribution of

 13  marijuana Mr. Turner was sentenced to seven years with

 14  five years suspended.

 15                       And regarding the possession of a

 16  Schedule I or II, he was sentenced to five years with

 17  four years suspended.  Okay.

 18                       Then on July 7th of 2008, in the

 19  Circuit Court for Amherst County, Virginia, you were

 20  convicted of failure to appear on a felony charge, a

 21  felony.

 22                       You were sentenced to five years

 23  with three years and eleven months suspended.  What

 24  specifically happened that led to that conviction?

 25                       MR. TURNER:  I was in a -- in a
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 01  hotel room with me and some friends, and I had left the

 02  hotel room.  And when I left the hotel room a gentleman

 03  and a female was -- was left -- left in the room.

 04                       Upon me leaving them in the room, I

 05  noticed that, you know, the sheriff department and some

 06  other officers was going in the room, well, going

 07  towards the room, so I kind of doubled back to see, you

 08  know, what was going on or whatever the case may be.

 09                       And in the process of me going back

 10  to, you know, see what was going on, they went in the

 11  room that we just, you know, that previously I just

 12  left, and they found, you know, there was some drugs

 13  that was in the room.

 14                       And I wind up being charged, you

 15  know, another gentleman wind up being charged, and

 16  another gentleman wind up being charged.  So upon me

 17  going to court they dropped the other two gentlemen's

 18  charges and just charged me.

 19                       So I was informed by my lawyer that

 20  I was being charged because I had more to offer, and

 21  this is my lawyer's exact words was I had more to offer

 22  the sheriff department than the other two gentlemen did,

 23  you know, because I had maybe like $2,500 in my pocket

 24  and, you know, he was basically saying, you know, they

 25  wanted to keep the money and, you know, I basically fit
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 01  the criteria for the drugs that was in the -- in the

 02  hotel room, so I was the one that was charged with it

 03  and found guilty of it.

 04                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  In -- in

 05  looking at your criminal record though, I don't see any

 06  specific drug charges that relate to this incident.  You

 07  were due in court though regarding drug charges from

 08  that incident at the hotel room?

 09                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I was.

 10                       THE COURT:  Okay.  Do you recall why

 11  you failed to appear regarding that case?

 12                       MR. TURNER:  Yeah, I -- I did --

 13  once the judge had sentenced me, he let me go on -- on

 14  my presentence report and he trusted me enough to let me

 15  go on my presentence report to report back, and I didn't

 16  -- I didn't report back.  I just didn't report back so

 17  that's where the contempt of court come in that.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And regarding

 19  the drugs that were found in the hotel room this was

 20  cocaine?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  It was

 22  marijuana.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Marijuana, okay.  And

 24  you said that also you had about $2,500 on you at the

 25  time?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes,

 02  ma'am.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on August

 04  15th of 2016, in the Circuit Court for Lynchburg,

 05  Virginia, you were convicted of manufacturing or

 06  distributing a controlled substance, Schedule I or II, a

 07  second offense.

 08                       This is a felony.  You were

 09  sentenced to ten years of incarceration with seven years

 10  suspended followed by supervised probation.  What

 11  specifically happened that led to that conviction in

 12  2016?

 13                       MR. TURNER:  Me and a young lady

 14  was, I guess it was late at night, maybe like two

 15  o'clock in the morning, 1:30, two o'clock, and I had

 16  just came from a -- a club with the young lady.

 17                       And we were kind of just standing

 18  around and talking, and I guess maybe we were being too

 19  loud in the neighborhood that we were in and someone

 20  called the police.

 21                       And when the police got there, you

 22  know, -- you know, they just, you know, asked for our

 23  names and -- and things like that and, you know, asked

 24  could we be searched, and, you know, I allowed him -- I

 25  gave him consent to search, and, you know, upon him
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 01  searching me, you know, he found some cocaine on me.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you recall

 03  how much cocaine you were in possession of?

 04                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, 14 grams.

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Then on

 06  January 20th of 2016, in the Juvenile and Domestic Court

 07  for Lynchburg, Virginia, you were convicted of assault

 08  and battery on a family member, a misdemeanor.  You were

 09  sentenced to three months of incarceration with all

 10  three months suspended.

 11                       What specifically happened that led

 12  to this assault and battery?

 13                       MR. TURNER:  I -- I had just got

 14  custody of my son, so my son was, you know, before the

 15  -- before I caught the cocaine charge, I had got custody

 16  of my son.

 17                       You know, I went through the whole

 18  process, the court process, and I got, you know, custody

 19  of my son, so then my son was staying with me.

 20                       And -- and the reason being, you

 21  know, he was being real disrespectful to his mom and his

 22  mom was saying he was out of control and, you know, he

 23  was just going through his teenage years.

 24                       So she said it was best that he

 25  probably come stay with me and, you know, he came to
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 01  stay with me.  So in the process of staying with me and

 02  my wife, you know, I -- I -- I seen some behaviors that

 03  was going on, like him not, you know, going to school,

 04  him not applying himself in school and -- and stuff like

 05  that and, you know, and that's all I asked of him is to

 06  just go to school and apply yourself in school.

 07                       So he was informing me that he was

 08  going to school and he was doing all these things, so I

 09  doubled back and went to the school to see, you know,

 10  just to check on him and see what he was doing.

 11                       And the teachers and -- and -- and

 12  staff informed me that he wasn't doing too good, that he

 13  wasn't participating.  He wasn't doing his homework.  He

 14  wasn't doing anything.

 15                       So I explained to him that, you

 16  know, if he don't, you know, apply himself that, you

 17  know, I'm going to take his phone because, of course,

 18  he's, you know, kids these -- you know, nowadays like

 19  their phones and skateboarding and, you know, their

 20  activities.

 21                       And I informed him that I'm going to

 22  take your phone and I'm going to take your skateboard

 23  and, you know, we agreed that, you know, he was going --

 24  you know, get right in school and do what he's supposed

 25  to do.
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 01                       So I get his report card, and when I

 02  get his report card he got all F's and -- and I was very

 03  disappointed that he got all F's, so I told him, you

 04  know, that we agreed upon that if he didn't do right and

 05  -- and do what he's supposed to do that he no longer

 06  would have a phone or a skateboard.

 07                       So I guess his phone and skateboard

 08  was gone for about four or five days and I was going to

 09  school.  I was going to a community college for my

 10  associate degree.

 11                       So I come in from school one day and

 12  he say, you know, dad, you know, can I get my

 13  skateboard, you know, and my phone back, so I told him,

 14  no.  He wasn't getting no skateboard.  He wasn't getting

 15  no phone back.

 16                       So, I mean, and -- and excuse my

 17  language but, you know, he basically said fuck you and

 18  your wife, and once he said that I kind of grabbed and

 19  -- and shook him.  I didn't hit me.

 20                       I, you know, I didn't -- because

 21  this is my son, so I -- you know, and my son is -- is

 22  very light skinned so, you know, it's going to leave

 23  marks and things like that if you was to, you know,

 24  bruise him or hit him or something.

 25                       So I just shook him.  I just grabbed
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 01  him and shook him and, you know, just took him to the

 02  ground and told him don't -- you don't never disrespect

 03  your parents like that.

 04                       So, you know, he kind of called his

 05  mom and got his mom involved and that was the incident

 06  that happened.

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Was it his mother who

 08  called law enforcement?

 09                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  It was his

 10  mother that called law enforcement.

 11                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And earlier we

 12  spoke about young children that you had with Ms.

 13  Whitehead.  Is this now a son that's teenage years?

 14                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 16                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes,

 17  ma'am.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And it looks

 19  like this incident took place in early August of 2015,

 20  and as you said the charges that we spoke about where

 21  you were found in possession of cocaine took place later

 22  on in August in 2015.

 23                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  All right.

 25  And you mention that you had a wife at the time.  This
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 01  is a different woman not Ms. Whitehead, correct?

 02                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  This is a

 03  different, yes, ma'am.

 04                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And then on

 05  January 4th of 2017, in the Circuit Court for Amherst

 06  County, Virginia, you were found in violation of

 07  probation on a felony offense.

 08                       You were sentenced to three years

 09  and eleven months of incarceration with three years and

 10  eight months suspended.

 11                       What led to this violation of felony

 12  probation?

 13                       MR. TURNER:  That was the violation

 14  for the contempt of court, the failure to appear in

 15  court.

 16                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And so what

 17  violated your probation on that?  Was that obtaining the

 18  assault and battery conviction?

 19                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  It was

 20  obtaining the possession with the intent charge that I

 21  caught in 2016.

 22                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Okay.  So

 23  that's the conviction out of Lynchburg and you were then

 24  violated in Amherst County?

 25                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.
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 01                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Okay.  And

 02  then on February 6th of 2017, in the Circuit Court for

 03  Lynchburg, Virginia, you were convicted of two counts of

 04  violation of felony probation, both felonies.

 05                       You were sentenced to three years of

 06  incarceration.  Why were you found in violation of

 07  probation in Lynchburg?

 08                       MR. TURNER:  That was the violation

 09  from the 2008 incident.

 10                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And so you had

 11  charges in Lynchburg.  Let me see.  Those were from the

 12  possession of a Schedule I or II drug back in 2008.  So

 13  when you obtained the new charges in Lynchburg in 2016,

 14  you were then violated on probation; is that correct?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Yes.  Yes, ma'am.

 16                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  All right.

 17  What have you learned or how have you changed following

 18  these convictions, sir?

 19                       MR. TURNER:  Well, I have changed a

 20  lot, you know, in my 44 years I, you know, and I know

 21  you all have probably heard it all, but in my 44 years I

 22  have never got on my hands and knees and prayed to

 23  anybody or anything.

 24                       So this go around I really got on my

 25  hands and knees.  2017 I recommitted myself to
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 01  Christianity and a faith belief that I can change my

 02  life, you know, as I said before in my 44 years I

 03  haven't committed to nothing beyond, you know, any

 04  understanding.

 05                       Upon me changing, you know, upon me

 06  adapting my faith it -- it gave me understanding on what

 07  -- what it takes to change.  It takes commitment.  It

 08  takes getting outside yourself.

 09                       It takes getting outside your

 10  environment, finding new people that's, you know, not

 11  doing the same thing that you -- you're always and doing

 12  the old things that you do.

 13                       I mean in this process, in this

 14  whole process it kind of -- it hurt my soul that it's a

 15  constant trend with me keep going through the same thing

 16  I'm going through, you know, with the home, you know,

 17  being locked up and being away from my family, my kids

 18  growing up without me, getting older.

 19                       And, you know, it really hurts me to

 20  my heart that, you know, I had to go through these

 21  things for so long to finally get an understanding that,

 22  you know, this is not what I want, you know, I want

 23  change.

 24                       I want to be a productive citizen.

 25  I want to be a taxpayer person, and once I came into the
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 01  wastewater water field from the time I walked through

 02  that door I felt like I belonged, you know, this is

 03  where I want to be.

 04                       This is, you know, my change of life

 05  right here, you know, no longer am I, you know, putting

 06  drugs into the community and poisoning the community.

 07  I'm looking at wastewater and water treatment as now I'm

 08  giving back to the community.  I'm helping with the

 09  community now.

 10                       And from James River to Bland

 11  Correction I -- I -- supervisor to the people that I

 12  work with hand in hand, they've been nothing but

 13  acceptable.  They have been nothing but, you know, kind

 14  and good to me, and, yeah, so I -- I really want this

 15  change.

 16                       You know, I did a lot of soul

 17  searching, you know, and -- and I'm just ready.  I'm

 18  just ready to stop this -- this trend, you know what I'm

 19  saying, of back and forth with the drugs and, you know,

 20  trying to take shortcuts in life, you know, and that's

 21  what I've been doing, you know, trying to take shortcuts

 22  and -- and -- and setting myself for short-term goals.

 23                       You know, with the wastewater and

 24  water treatment it's a longevity.  It's a longevity

 25  goal.  It's a career.  It's a profession and I really
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 01  look forward, you know, to being a part of that

 02  profession.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  What do you like

 04  about the wastewater and waterworks field?

 05                       MR. TURNER:  I just love it that,

 06  you know, you're applying yourself, that you -- that you

 07  are giving back to the community and to the environment.

 08                       You know, when I first entered the

 09  field I, you know, I had to smile to myself because when

 10  I went to a sink or I went to a water fountain to take a

 11  drink of water, I thought to myself at some point I was

 12  part of this process, you know, I was part of whether it

 13  was cleaning it up, you know, to put back in the creek

 14  or the river or whether it was a part of, you know,

 15  distributing it to the community.

 16                       So I felt good that at some point I

 17  was a part of something, you know, that what I was doing

 18  was essential and -- and I, you know, I really -- it put

 19  a smile on my face.

 20                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  It looks like you

 21  were released from incarceration in December of 2020; is

 22  that correct?

 23                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I was.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you're

 25  currently living in North Carolina?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I am.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Have you been

 03  working at all since you were released from

 04  incarceration?

 05                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  I work for

 06  UPS.

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  How long have

 08  you been working for UPS?

 09                       MR. TURNER:  I just started probably

 10  about three weeks ago, maybe, three, four weeks, and

 11  that's because I was probation to Virginia so it took,

 12  you know, two or three months for them to transfer my

 13  probation from Virginia to North Carolina.

 14                       So that's why it kind of take a

 15  little bit of time for me to get a job in North Carolina

 16  because I had to wait for them to transfer my probation

 17  from Virginia to North Carolina.

 18                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  So you started

 19  at UPS approximately three weeks ago.  Are you a driver

 20  or you're working in the warehouse?  What are you doing?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, the

 22  warehouse.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 24  it took a while for your probation to transfer.  Were

 25  you working at all before UPS?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am, because I,

 02  you know, at any given minute they was, you know,

 03  transferring my probation, so it was told to just, you

 04  know, stay out of trouble and, you know what I'm saying,

 05  that they was working on my transfer.  So, you know, I

 06  just stayed out of trouble and, yes, ma'am.

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And it looks

 08  like you were working in that waste waterworks field

 09  while you were at Bland Correctional.  Did you hold any

 10  institutional positions?

 11                       MR. TURNER:  I'm not understanding

 12  the question.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Did you work while

 14  you were incarcerated and what did you do?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yeah,

 16  well, I worked at the wastewater plant.  I was getting

 17  paid to be in the apprenticeship program at the

 18  wastewater plant.

 19                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you

 20  started that apprenticeship in 2019; is that correct?

 21                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes,

 22  ma'am.

 23                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  All right.

 24  And then prior to your period of incarceration, do you

 25  have any work history, sir?
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 01                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am, I do.

 02                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 03                       MR. TURNER:  You know, I have a -- I

 04  worked with the Virginia Department of Transportation

 05  pouring asphalt working with the street crew.  I did

 06  that for about six months.  And I --

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  What year was that?

 08                       MR. TURNER:  This was I guess about

 09  2006, 2007 maybe, right before I got incarcerated with

 10  the 2008 thing.

 11                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 12                       MR. TURNER:  Also, you know, I

 13  worked at a, you know, lot of factories, one being

 14  Brooks Food Group where they made food for Ruby Tuesday

 15  and Burger King, French toast sticks and stuff for

 16  Burger King and stuff like that.

 17                       I worked at a factory where they

 18  make Bath and Body Work products and some hygiene stuff

 19  and, you know, so it's been mainly like factory and

 20  warehouse work, but the most productive to me was when I

 21  was working for the VDOT.

 22                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  In 2006 to

 23  2007?

 24                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes,

 25  ma'am.
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 01                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And it sounds

 02  like also for a period of several years that you were

 03  also selling drugs.  What years would you say that

 04  encompassed?

 05                       MR. TURNER:  You say what years

 06  what, ma'am?

 07                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  What years were you

 08  selling drugs?  Was that up until your most recent

 09  period of incarceration?

 10                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes,

 11  ma'am.

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  While you were

 13  incarcerated, did you participate in any rehabilitative

 14  programs or classes?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  They had

 16  me in for some productive citizenship and substance

 17  abuse classes, and actually I'm supposed to go to a

 18  substance abuse class here in North Carolina tomorrow as

 19  a matter of fact.

 20                       But I guess they was so far behind

 21  and because of the COVID-19 they had to kind of shut

 22  things down with the programs and stuff like that, so I

 23  wasn't, per se, able to attend, you know, some of them

 24  classes but I was on schedule.

 25                       It was on the docket to, you know,
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 01  be in those classes, but, you know, like I said because

 02  of the backlog because of the COVID-19, I wasn't able to

 03  get into those classes.

 04                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  You're

 05  currently on probation at this time.  How long do you

 06  anticipate this period of probation to be?

 07                       MR. TURNER:  They said December 22 I

 08  will be off probation.

 09                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Okay.  So

 10  approximately two years after you were released from

 11  incarceration?

 12                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And if you've

 14  now applied for your Class 4 wastewater works operator

 15  license.  What are your plans moving forward if that's

 16  granted?

 17                       MR. TURNER:  Just to get in the

 18  field and -- and to move up, you know, to go from my

 19  three to my four.

 20                       If I'm granted permission to, you

 21  know, get my class license four, I -- you know, it was a

 22  blessing that I did wind up going to Bland because when

 23  I went to Bland, Bland had the waterworks and they had

 24  the wastewater, so not only do I have, you know, enough

 25  time in for the water -- waterworks, but I also have
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 01  enough time in for the wastewater as well.

 02                       So if I am granted, you know, their

 03  permission I'm going to get my wastewater license as

 04  well, you know, and I'm going to start applying myself

 05  in that field, you know, I've been on line and looking

 06  and been on Indeed and getting, you know, feedback from,

 07  you know, positions in the wastewater field.

 08                       So, yeah, I'm going to -- I'm going

 09  to pursue the career with tenacity, and the same time

 10  and energy that I put into these criminal behaviors I'm

 11  going to put into the wastewater and waterworks.

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you

 13  mentioned your children earlier.  How old are your

 14  children now?

 15                       MR. TURNER:  My son is 21 and my

 16  daughter is 20.

 17                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you

 18  relocated to North Carolina.  What brought you to North

 19  Carolina?

 20                       MR. TURNER:  My wife.  Me and my

 21  wife met -- me and my wife met in 2006, and she moved

 22  from Virginia to North Carolina in 2010 when I was

 23  incarcerated.

 24                       And when I came home in 2014, she

 25  was relocated in North Carolina, so I relocated to North
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 01  Carolina as well.  And I've been here and, you know, and

 02  -- and once I caught the charges again and came home she

 03  was still located in the North Carolina area, so I

 04  relocated once again back here to North Carolina.

 05                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And following

 06  the incident with your son, that led to that assault and

 07  battery conviction, did you participate in anger

 08  management or any type of parenting classes following

 09  that conviction?

 10                       MR. TURNER:  Yes.  Yes, ma'am, I

 11  did.  I did.  Yes, ma'am.

 12                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.

 13                       MR. TURNER:  Anger management, yes,

 14  ma'am.

 15                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And is there

 16  anything else -- well, actually, earlier you mentioned

 17  that for a period of time you were pursuing your

 18  associate's degree.  What community college were you at?

 19                       MR. TURNER:  I went to Southside

 20  Virginia Community College.  I started when I was

 21  incarcerated -- I started when I was incarcerated in

 22  2010, so I went from like 2010 to maybe 2012, and then,

 23  you know, something happened with the grant and the

 24  funds and stuff.

 25                       So once I was released in 2014, I
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 01  applied for FASA and they granted me the FASA and I went

 02  back to school, and -- and that was Guilford Tech

 03  Community College here in Greensboro, and was going

 04  there up until, you know, I caught the charges in 2015,

 05  the drug charges.

 06                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Did you end up

 07  receiving your associate's degree?

 08                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.  I got 40 --

 09  I have 42 credits and I think it's like 62 or 56 or

 10  something to get your, you know, associate's degree, so

 11  at some point in time I do want to go back and, you

 12  know, try to finish what I started.

 13                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Is

 14  there anything else you would like to share with us

 15  about who you are today or anything I've not

 16  specifically asked you about as we consider your

 17  application?

 18                       MR. TURNER:  Yes, ma'am.  Yeah,

 19  sure.  Like I say, you know, looking back on these

 20  charges, looking back on my history of, you know, of me,

 21  I -- I know it don't look good for me, you know, that

 22  over these years I have, you know, stacked up so much

 23  stuff.

 24                       But, you know, I -- I'm a changed

 25  person, you know, and I know you guys hear that all the
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 01  time, you know, but I -- I'm sincere.  I'm honest, and I

 02  really am.  I really do want to change, and I know with

 03  change it takes different things for you to, you know,

 04  commit yourself to -- to change.

 05                       Like I said, I -- you know, I'm in

 06  the faith belief now, and that's something that I

 07  haven't did in my 44 years is commit myself to any

 08  faith, but I'm committing myself to faith.

 09                       I'm committing myself to change and

 10  what it takes for change.  Change takes sacrifice.

 11  Change takes, you know, you getting out of your criminal

 12  element and getting out of your comfort, and I, you

 13  know, and -- and I've been tested over the years, you

 14  know, with my change.

 15                       And I just want to say one of them

 16  testings and one of my testimony to my change is when

 17  the director of the DOC program for the wastewater water

 18  treatment, when he came to me, his name is Mr. Tim

 19  Newton, when he came to me because I was at a low level

 20  facility which is James River Work Center at the time,

 21  but it's called State Farm Work Center now.

 22                       And I was able to put in for work

 23  release in like eight months, and he came to me and he

 24  said, Mr. Turner, you know, you've been doing a good

 25  job, you know, what's your future?  What do you want to
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 01  do?  Are you going to work release, or do you want to

 02  stay in the program and, you know what I'm saying, and

 03  further your career?

 04                       Without hesitation I told Mr. Newton

 05  that I want to stay, you know, in the program and I see

 06  my change come because the old me would have been

 07  looking at the money standpoint, like I'm going to work

 08  release.  I can make money.  I can pay some of these

 09  bills off.  I can do XYZ with the money.

 10                       It was just -- my whole motive would

 11  have been money, and if you look over my history that's

 12  been the whole, you know, the whole motive is money.

 13                       So at this point in time, you know,

 14  without hesitation I told him, no, I'm going to stay in

 15  the program.  So I was proud of myself that I didn't put

 16  the money before my goals and before things that going

 17  to benefit me in longevity, so I just say that, you

 18  know, -- you know, it's a field that I -- that I feel

 19  like it's my calling.

 20                       And I just hope and pray that, you

 21  know, you all give me the chance to prove that, you know

 22  what I'm saying, people can change and people can, you

 23  know what I'm saying, become different people.

 24                       And, you know, I just, you know,

 25  like I say I want to -- I want to be a productive
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 01  citizen.  I want to be a tax paying citizen and, you

 02  know, I just hope that you all give me that chance.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  Mr.

 04  O'Donnell, do you have any additional questions for Mr.

 05  Turner?

 06                       MR. O'DONNELL:  The only question I

 07  have is if granted licensure are you planning to move to

 08  Virginia for work or commute to Virginia?

 09                       MR. TURNER:  That's a good question.

 10  I would like to come back to Virginia.  I mean, because

 11  like I said Mr. Newton of the program informed me that,

 12  you know, and -- and -- and he said in the truth that he

 13  hire, you know, convicted felons and he rehire people

 14  that went through his program.

 15                       So he, you know, he kind of gave me

 16  the hint that get your license.  You get your license

 17  and call me and we're going to work something out.  So,

 18  you know, I would like to use that resource.

 19                       I would like to use that, so if I

 20  can get my license and I can call him and say, hey, I

 21  got my license, I -- you know, I'll relocate.

 22                       MR. O'DONNELL:  Okay.  That's all I

 23  have.  Thank you.

 24                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.  If

 25  there's nothing further, then let me explain the process
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 01  from today moving forward.

 02                       Based upon everything I have heard

 03  and everything I've read, I'll put my thoughts together

 04  into a written recommendation.

 05                       The Department will mail you a copy

 06  of my recommendation along with a letter letting you

 07  know the date and time where the full Board will meet to

 08  make a final decision concerning your application.

 09                       You're welcome to attend that Board

 10  meeting, but you do not have to.  If you do attend the

 11  Board meeting, the Board will give you an opportunity of

 12  about five minutes to address the full Board before they

 13  make their final decision.

 14                       Generally what happens is the Board

 15  will briefly hear from you.  They will discuss your case

 16  and then they'll vote right then and there that day, so

 17  if you do attend the Board meeting, you'll know the

 18  final outcome concerning your application that day.

 19                       If you choose not to attend or

 20  you're unable to do so, we'll still follow up with you

 21  by letter a couple of days after the Board meeting.

 22                       One thing you need to understand is

 23  I can recommend yes and the full Board could say no or

 24  the other way around.  It's a majority vote of the

 25  entire Board that makes the final decision.  Do you have
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 01  any additional questions for me, sir?

 02                       MR. TURNER:  No, ma'am.

 03                       MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  If there's

 04  nothing further, then I'll thank you very much for your

 05  time and I will conclude the conference.  We're off

 06  record now.

 07                            NOTE:  The hearing concluded at

 08  11:30 a.m.
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